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Answers to Questions 
from Scientific Games International, Inc. 

1. Question: ITN General Questions. Will the Lottery provide updates to the following DVDs 
issued by the Lottery during the previously ITN? 

a. The ITN-001-13/14 Public Record Documents 
b. Player and Retailer Promotion Rules 2011-April 2014  

Answer:  Yes, at its discretion or in response to a request. 

2. Question: ITN Telecommunications. Will the Lottery provide updates to the following since 
the previous ITN release? 

a. All lottery locations that will require either a terminal to cash winning tickets or 
workstations that a used to monitor the network or systems services.   

i. Street Address 
ii. City  
iii. Area Code (National Destination Code), Exchange Number and Subscriber 

number (XXX-XXX-XXXX) 
iv. This information is required to properly cost out telecommunications carriers for 

that location. 

Answer:  Yes, at its discretion or in response to a request.  

b. All Florida Lottery warehouse locations. 

a. Street Address 
b. City  
c. Area Code (National Destination Code), Exchange Number and Subscriber 

number (XXX-XXX-XXXX) 

Answer: Refer to Attachment G, Added Page 1 of this Addendum for warehouse 
locations.  

3. Question: Attachment C: Part 2 – Performance Requirements and Deliverables. Section 
C2.6.3.2(3), the new requirement states, ”The Contractor’s Remote Backup Site Lease 
Agreement must stipulate in the event of any default of the Contractor, the Lottery is allowed 
immediate, full access to the facility for recovery of Lottery-owned equipment for a period 
not to exceed ninety days and at no charge to the Lottery. A copy of the executed lease 
agreement must be provided to the Lottery.”  Is this requirement a current contract clause 
with the Lottery’s Gaming System supplier? 

Answer:  The referenced section is a requirement of this ITN and the resulting Contract.  
Obligations of the current Contract with the current Contractor are not a subject of this ITN.
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Answers to Questions 
from GTECH 

4. Question: General. Will the Lottery please confirm that Vendors have permission to use 
the Florida Lottery logo within their Replies? 

Answer: Yes, Vendors are granted a one-time authorization for the purposes of 
responding to this ITN.  Please refer to the Lottery website at: 
http://www.flalottery.com/logoLibrary.do.  

5. Question: 1.7 Schedule of Events. Pursuant to the Schedule of Events set forth in Section 
1.7, the Lottery’s “Answers issued in addendum to Invitation to Negotiate” will not be issued 
until Thursday, February 26, 2015, which will leave the Vendors only 12 full Business Days 
to revise their Replies before the Reply submission due date of Tuesday, March 17, 2015. 
Most responsible Vendors will be in the final production/printing stage of their Replies 12 
Business Days prior to the Reply submission due date, and may not have adequate time to 
the extent the Lottery makes any material changes to the ITN based upon such Answers. As 
such, will the Lottery please revise the Schedule of Events in Section 1.7 to delay the Reply 
submission due date to thirty (30) calendar days following the Lottery’s issuance of its 
“Answers issued in addendum to Invitation to Negotiate”? 

Answer:  No. The Lottery has considered this request and the Schedule of Events set forth 
in Section 1.7 of this ITN remains unchanged.   

6. Question: 1.19 Disclosure and Ownership of Reply Contents by the Lottery. Will the 
Lottery please correct the reference in Section 1.19 that references “Section 1.21 
(Confidential Reply Materials) to correctly reference Section 1.20? 

Answer: This is a typographical error.  Refer to Revised Page 8 of this Addendum that 
provides a correction. 

7. Question: 2.3 Vendor System Description; 2.5 Enhancements and Additional Offerings; 
4.6 Cost & Compensation; Attachment F Cost Submittal Form. The ITN allows a Vendor to 
submit additional and/or alternative costing in addition to the “percentage of sales” base 
costing methodology set forth in the Cost Submittal Form included as Attachment F. 
However, the Cost Submittal Form set forth in Attachment F permits only the submission of 
the percentage of sales for the initial term and the renewal terms. As such, will the Lottery 
please confirm that Vendors are permitted to revise Attachment F to allow the inclusion of 
such additional/alternative costing methods (such costing which would be in addition to the 
required “percentage of sales” base costing methodology currently set forth on Attachment 
F)? 

Answer: Vendors are afforded discretion in the format and content of submitting 
alternative costing methodologies as well as costing models for Reply Enhancements and 
Additional Offerings.   
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8. Question: 2.4.4(2) Software Development and Support Capabilities - Software Qualities. 
In Item #2 of Section 2.4.4, the ITN states that the Vendor “should also succinctly describe 
its software elevation process and the controls over that process” and should show the 
Lottery’s role “in the assurance and control of capabilities and elevation management 
(emphasis added).”   

Will the Lottery please confirm that “software elevation process” and “elevation 
management” are meant as production software change and release management; and if 
not, then will the Lottery please clarify the intent and meaning of “software elevation 
process” and “elevation management”? 

Answer: The Lottery confirms that these terms include production software changes and 
release management, to include Lottery software quality assurance testing operational and 
technical issues.  

9. Question: 2.4.10 Technology Refresh; 4.6 Cost & Compensation. Section 2.4.10 of the 
ITN provides for the Lottery’s requirement of technology refreshes during the term of the 
Contract. While this Vendor fully appreciates and supports the Lottery’s desire to ensure that 
the Lottery’s objectives are met effectively and efficiently, this Vendor is unclear whether the 
Lottery expects that certain equipment provided by the Contractor in connection with 
conversion (i.e., the equipment identified in Section C2.1.6) will be required to be 
“refreshed” during the initial ten (10) year term or any subsequent renewal term.   

As such, will the Lottery please clarify if it expects that these “technology refreshes” of 
equipment (e.g., terminals and peripherals and/or central system hardware) must be 
included in the base pricing? This responsible Vendor does not want the Lottery to incur 
materially incremental costs (and thus decrease the Lottery’s contributions to EETF) in 
connection with this conversion as a result of Vendor pricing that is unduly burdened with 
technology refreshes for equipment that may not be needed during the term.   

Further, will the Lottery please revise Section 2.4.10 to expressly provide that to the extent 
the Lottery and the Contractor deem that a proposed technology refresh is necessary, that 
the Lottery and the Contractor will mutually agree on the commercial terms for such 
technology refresh? 

Answer:  The ITN contemplates that Vendors will describe their approach and schedule for 
technology refreshes, including what, if any refreshes are anticipated and included in the 
base price, as opposed to refreshes that will require additional compensation.   

10. Question: 2.5.1 Reply Enhancements; 2.5.2 Additional Offerings; Attachment F Cost 
Submittal Form.  Is To Be Determined (TBD) an acceptable cost line item for the Attachment F 
Cost Submittal Form with respect to those Reply Enhancements and/or Additional Offerings 
proposed as an appendix to the Cost Submittal Form?   

Answer:  This is an option within the Vendor’s discretion.  If a Vendor proposes Cost 
Submittal Forms we will consider them.   
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Question: Additionally, will the Lottery please amend the ITN to correct the incorrect 
references to “Cost Reply Form” (to correctly reference the “Cost Submittal Form”) in: (i) 
Attachments Box to the Table of Contents on page ii, and (ii) the last paragraph of 
Attachment F describing the pricing of the Reply Enhancements and Additional Offerings? 

Answer: This is a typographical error.  Refer to Revised Page ii, and Revised Attachment F 
of this Addendum that provides a correction. 

11. Question: 2.5.1 Reply Enhancements; 2.5.2 Additional Offerings; 5.4.2 Evaluation. 
Section 2.5.1 (Reply Enhancements) of the ITN allows for a Vendor to suggest unique, 
additional, or alternative functionality that such Vendor can offer the Lottery. Additionally, 
Section 2.5.2 (Additional Offerings) provides for a Vendor to respond to those additional 
offerings that the Lottery would like to review and consider (with the Lottery noting that the 
list of Additional Offerings is not an exclusive list). However, in both instances, the Lottery 
has indicated that these are “optional commodities and services” which are not part of the 
base offering.  

This Vendor believes that while it is appropriate to allow Vendors to provide separate 
pricing for the “Additional Offerings” (discussed further below), that the “Reply 
Enhancements” proposed by a Vendor should be included in the base pricing provided by 
each Vendor, as these Reply Enhancements are intended to evidence a Vendor going above 
and beyond what is required in the Performance Requirements and Deliverables set forth in 
Part 2 of Attachment C (to which these Reply Enhancements must be cross-referenced). We 
believe that requiring Reply Enhancements to be included in the Vendors’ base pricing 
would allow the Lottery to meaningfully evaluate the various Reply Enhancement offerings on 
an “apples to apples” basis as between the Vendors. As such, will the Lottery please revise 
the ITN to explicitly require that the Reply Enhancements listed in response to Section 2.5.1 
of the ITN must be included in a Vendor’s base pricing and not allowing for separate 
costing for these Reply Enhancements in the Cost Submittal Form?  

Answer: The Lottery has considered this request and the term and condition remains 
unchanged. 

Question: Further, “Evaluation Criterion” in Section 5.4.2 allocates 500 points to the 
“Additional Offerings,” which is equal to 12% of the total evaluation points (noting that this 
12% allocation is the same weight as the “Vendor System Overview,” which contains a 
description of the major deliverables required under this ITN). However, as noted above, 
the cost to the Lottery for these Additional Offerings is not considered in this evaluation 
process and, furthermore, the Lottery has not provided detailed specifications that would 
allow the Lottery to evaluate such proposed offerings on a comparative basis as between the 
Vendors. Thus, this Vendor believes that while Vendors should be free to propose Additional 
Offerings for the Lottery’s consideration, these Additional Offerings should not be allocated 
points in the Evaluation Criterion set forth in Section 5.4.2 of the ITN.  

As such, we respectfully request that the Lottery remove Section 2.5.2 (Additional Offerings) 
from the Evaluation Criterion set forth in Section 5.4.2 and re-allocate those 500 points to 
Sections that include solutions provided in the base pricing (e.g., Section 2.3 Vendor 
System Overview). However, should the Lottery elect to keep the Additional Offerings in the 
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Evaluation Criterion, will the Lottery please consider reallocating the points allocated to this 
Section 2.5.2 such that the points are decreased to an amount well below the current 500 
points (and re-allocate the points to criterion which must be included in the base price)? 

Answer: The Lottery has considered these requests and the evaluation methodology 
remains unchanged. 

12. Question: 3.5 Financial Statements. Section 3.5 requires Vendors (and Substantial 
Subcontractors) to submit certified financial statements (or Federal income tax returns), and 
these documents contain hundreds of pages each.  In order for Vendors to be 
environmentally responsible, will the Lottery please allow Vendors to submit the certified 
financial statements (or Federal income tax returns) for the Vendor and Substantial 
Subcontractors on CD, DVD, or other electronic media in lieu of paper copies? 

Answer: The Lottery has considered this request and the term and condition remains 
unchanged. 

13. Question: 3.6 Vendor Information & Disclosure/Background Investigations; 3.9 Respect of 
Florida – Contractual Relationship; 3.10 Preference to Florida Businesses. Will the Lottery 
please confirm that Section 3.9 and 3.10 should be re-numbered 3.7 and 3.8, respectively? 
If so, will the Lottery please amend the ITN to reflect correct section numbering and any 
related cross-references to these newly re-numbered sections? 

Answer: This is a typographical error.  Refer to Revised Page ii, and Revised Pages 30 
and 31 of this Addendum that provides a correction. 

14. Question: 3.10 Preference to Florida Businesses.  Will the Lottery please confirm whether 
an opinion from in-house legal counsel licensed in the state of Vendor’s principal place of 
business satisfies the requirement in Section 3.10? 

Answer: The opinion may be from either internal or external counsel. 

15. Question: 4.1 Packaging & Labeling; 4.2 Copies of Replies; 4.4 Formatting.  In 
connection with the packaging and labeling requirements found in Section 4.1 of the ITN, it 
is unclear to this Vendor the specific documents (other than those documents requested in 
Part 3 (Administrative Qualification Review & Cure Process)) that must be included in the 
“Other Qualification & Administrative binders”. 

As such, will the Lottery please clarify the specific documents (in addition to those documents 
required to be provided under Part 3) that must be included in this “Other Qualification & 
Administrative binder”? That is, will the Lottery please identify and list those “Other” 
documents?  For example, is the Lottery referring only to the Certification of a Drug Free 
Workplace? 

Answer:  Documents that are not identified to be submitted in ITN Part 2 or Cost Submittal 
are to be submitted within the Other Qualification & Administrative binder. 
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16. Question: 4.4 Formatting.  Item #6 of Section 4.4 of the ITN references “Tabs 2-14”. 
However, there are 15 Tabs listed below such reference. Will the Lottery please confirm 
that Item #6 should be read as follows “The ITN Part 2 response should include a separate 
binder where Tabs 2-15 represent specific item-by-item responses to the scope of the ITN as 
set forth in Part 2:…” and please amend the ITN to correct this typographical error? 

Answer: This is a typographical error.  Refer to Revised Page 34 of this Addendum that 
provides a correction.  

17. Question: 4.4 Formatting. Will the Lottery please confirm Vendors can consecutively 
number pages within each Tab section beginning at page 1? For example, Tab 2 – System 
Overview (in response to Section 2.3, Vendor System Description), would be numbered 
“2.3 – 1” through “2.3 – X”. 

Answer: The proposed format is acceptable. 

18. 4.6 Cost & Compensation; Attachment C: Part 2 - Performance Requirements and 
Deliverables; C2.1.6 Gaming Quantitative Performance Criteria.  It is unclear to this 
potential Vendor the exact requirements and mechanics under Section 4.6 for which any 
additional compensation would be determined for additional equipment, software, or 
services above what is required at start-up under Section C2.1.6. Section 4.6 provides for 
the following (emphasis added):  

“Any expansion or growth of the Lottery requiring additional equipment, software, or 
services would be the responsibility of the Contractor unless the Contractor can 
demonstrate to the Lottery's satisfaction that investment and operation of such items is 
so substantially different from the cost structure for the original (and other extended 
items) that the Contractor would not be able to recover its costs via the contracted 
compensation structure.  

In this case, and subject to negotiations, a different/incremental compensation 
approach may be contracted for such growth/expansion requirements. The type of 
investment or years of use/service could be conditions which could create 
justification for additional compensation.”  

As this Vendor hopes the Lottery can appreciate, the above language does not provide 
assurance to the potential Vendors that the Contractor will be entitled to obtain any 
additional compensation for this additional equipment/software/services, as:  

(i) The determination of any such additional compensation for additional 
equipment/software/services remains subject to the Lottery’s sole determination. The 
Lottery’s ability to require the provision of equipment/software/services from the 
Contractor, and then shift the burden to the Contractor to demonstrate why additional 
compensation is warranted for such equipment/software/services, with the final 
determination becoming subject to the Lottery’s sole satisfaction, could unnecessarily 
result in potential Vendors significantly burdening their base pricing to protect against 
the Lottery determining that additional compensation is not warranted. Further, the 
Lottery would arguably be paying this burdened pricing (and thus decreasing its 
contributions to EETF) from the start-up, and the Lottery could possibly continue to pay 
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this burdened pricing should the Lottery not require additional equipment, software, or 
services in the amounts for which such potential Vendors had projected in their 
burdened pricing, thereby unnecessarily resulting in decreased contributions to EETF;  

(ii) The investment and operation related to such equipment/software/services must be “so 
substantially different” from the cost structure then in place, and a potential Vendor is 
provided no context for the level of change that would meet this “so substantially 
different” requirement (and such determination remains in the Lottery’s sole discretion – 
which, as noted above, is also problematic to the Vendors). This unknown metric for 
determining whether the investment and operation is “so substantially different,” 
compounded by the fact that the determination will be subject to the “Lottery’s 
satisfaction” (as noted above), could thereby result in potential Vendors further 
burdening their base price, which ultimately is not in the best interest of the Lottery (and 
the Lottery’s contributions to EETF); and  

(iii) The Contractor’s burden to demonstrate that additional compensation is warranted 
(which remains subject to the Lottery’s sole determination) is based, among other items, 
upon the premise that the Contractor “would not be able to recover its costs” via the 
then-applicable compensation rate. A potential Vendor, as a for-profit enterprise, does 
not make investment decisions based on whether it will recover its costs, and instead has 
an obligation to its shareholders to recover profit in connection with its operations, and 
thus believes that the Lottery should allow for the Contractor to receive some 
commercially reasonable amount of profit in addition to the recovery of its costs.  

For the foregoing reasons, we respectfully request that the Lottery assist the Vendors to better 
understand the scope, process, and mechanics for determining whether additional 
compensation is warranted for additional equipment/software/services, which will 
ultimately result in Vendors providing pricing which is not burdened by these potential 
unknowns, by the Lottery’s providing responses to the following questions:  

1.  Question: Will the Lottery please explain how it intends to determine “so substantially 
different” in the context of Section 4.6? That is, are there specific metrics, thresholds, 
etc. (e.g., greater than X% different) that a potential Vendor can rely upon to understand 
if they will be entitled to additional compensation for such additional equipment / 
software / services?  

Answer: It is the Contractor’s responsibility to demonstrate such differences to the 
Lottery.  It is the Contractor’s responsibility to demonstrate what constitutes a substantial 
difference in each instance. 

2. Question: Will the Lottery please confirm that in addition to: (i) the type of investment 
or (ii) years of use/service as factors that “could be” conditions to justify that additional 
compensation is warranted, that the Lottery would reasonably consider other 
factors/conditions proposed by a Contractor that are justifications for additional 
compensation, including, without limitation: (A) projected average per terminal online 
games sales, (B) overall online Lottery sales growth expectations, (C) the deployment 
schedule for such equipment/software/services, and (D) whether such 
equipment/software/services are revenue generating?  
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Answer:  No. This question is too broad to answer unequivocally.  Any consideration 
of which sets of future circumstances might justify additional compensation would also 
need to be balanced by which sets of future circumstances might justify reductions in 
compensation.  

3. Question: Will the Lottery please revise Section 4.6 to provide that instead of the 
Contractor demonstrating that it would not be able to recover “its costs,” that the 
Contractor be entitled to demonstrate that it would not be able to recover “its costs plus 
some commercially reasonable profit” via the contracted compensation structure? 

Answer: No.  The Lottery has considered the request and the term and condition 
remains unchanged.   

19. Question: 5.2 Administrative Qualification Review & Cure Process.  Section 5.2 of the 
ITN, in discussing the “cure” process, states that “[c]ures related to qualification issues may 
be requested in accordance with Section1.14.” This Vendor believes the Section reference 
(1.14) was a typographical error and that the Lottery intended to reference back to Section 
1.13 (Administrative Qualification Review & Cure Process). Will the Lottery kindly amend 
the ITN to reflect the correct section reference (i.e., Section1.13)? 

Answer:  This is a typographical error.  Refer to Revised Page 37 of this Addendum that 
provides a correction. 

 
20. Question: 5.3 Evaluation Team.  Section 5.3 indicates that the Lottery will conduct a 

comprehensive, fair, and impartial evaluation of the ITN Part 2 responses. Will the Lottery 
please confirm that the Evaluation Team will review Vendors’ ITN Part 2 responses in a 
public setting? Further, will the Lottery please clarify when the Vendors’ Cost Submittal Forms 
will be opened publicly and/or made available to the public and the other Vendors? 

Answer: Vendor Replies will be evaluated pursuant to section 5.4 of the ITN with Cost 
Submittal Forms opened upon completion of the evaluation process.   

21. Question: 5.4.1 Award Scale for Evaluation.  In Section 5.4.1 of the ITN the Lottery states 
that “[t]his [scoring] system will provide numerical scores that represent the Team’s 
assessment of the relative merits of the Replies (emphasis added).” However, the 
introduction of Section 5.4 indicates that the evaluation is in connection with ITN Part 2 
only, and not the entirety of the “Replies”.   

As such, will the Lottery please confirm that the reference to “Replies” in Section 5.4.1 
should instead mean “ITN Part 2 responses” and kindly amend the ITN to reflect the same? 

Answer:  No. The Lottery has considered this request and the term and condition remains 
unchanged. 

22. Question: Attachment B: Mandatory Requirements of Contract.  With respect to the audit 
rights of the Lottery set forth in the “Audit” section of Attachment B, will the Lottery please 
confirm that such audits will be conducted with reasonable advance notice, during normal 
working hours, and in a manner not to unreasonably interfere with the Vendor’s business? 



 

Page 9 of 17 
 

Answer:  Most, if not all, audits will be scheduled in advance, performed during regular 
business hours, and done with the least amount of disruption to the Vendor’s business as 
possible under the circumstances.  The Lottery reserves the right to exercise discretion in the 
details or execution of any audit.   

23. Question: Attachment B: Mandatory Requirements of Contract. The “Change of 
Schedules” section of Attachment B provides that the Lottery may unilaterally “modify, 
reject, cancel or stop any and all plans, schedules or work in progress.” Will the Lottery 
please confirm that with respect to any modification to the delivery requirements, plans, or 
schedules of the Vendor/Contractor set forth in the ITN (and any resulting Contract) which 
reduces the time for the Contractor to provide any goods or perform any services 
thereunder, and for which there is an applicable liquidated damage assessment or other 
financial impact on the Contractor if it fails to meet such requirement, that any applicable 
liquidated damages will not apply if the applicable liquidated damages provision would not 
have applied in the absence of such modification? 

Answer: Yes, the Lottery confirms this understanding.  
 
24. Question: Attachment B: Mandatory Requirements of Contract; Attachment C: Part 1 - 

Special Terms and Conditions; C1.19 Title To, Use Of, and Compensation For, Intellectual 
Property.  Section C1.19 “Title To, Use Of, And Compensation For, Intellectual Property” 
provides that preexisting Intellectual Property associated with any product or service 
provided by the Contractor during the term of the Contract and used by the Lottery will 
remain the property of the Contractor. Will the Lottery please confirm that the above 
concept set forth in section C1.19 with respect to ownership of intellectual property applies 
to the “Confidentiality,” “Contractor’s Responsibilities Upon Termination,” 
“Ownership of Materials,” and Patents, Copyrights and Trademarks” sections 
of Attachment B? 

Answer: No.  This question is too broad to provide with a blanket answer.  The Lottery’s 
paramount interest is in carrying out its core mission and the Lottery expects the Vendor’s full 
cooperation with regard to future transitions.  Otherwise everyone involved should be 
mindful of the Vendor’s legitimate intellectual property rights.  

Question: Further, will the Lottery please clarify that the Lottery’s ownership rights in any 
product, service, or material provided by Contractor pursuant to the Contract, including any 
intellectual property rights therein, is limited to only those products, services, or materials 
that (a) first originated under this Contract; (b) is unique to the Lottery; and (c) was paid for 
by the Lottery?  

Answer:  No.  It includes all of those items or categories but is not limited to just those 
items or categories. The Lottery’s paramount interest is in carrying out its core mission, 
including seamless transitions.  If the Vendor provides the Lottery with a product, service, or 
material whose continued use is necessary for a smooth transition, then the Vendor should 
expect that the Lottery will continue to make use of that product, service, or material.  
Likewise, if the Vendor provides the Lottery with a product, service, or material whose 
continued use is necessary for its continued efficient operation, then the Vendor should 
expect that the Lottery will continue to make use of that product, service, or material. 
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Question: Additionally, will the Lottery please confirm that the Intellectual Property rights to 
which it seeks indefinite right to use pursuant to Section C1.19 in the conduct of lottery 
games relates to artwork, play style and related game content of games offered to the 
playing public, and not to the technology, software, and know-how comprising the 
underlying system on which such game-related Intellectual Property is operated?  

Answer:  No.  It includes all of those items or categories but is not limited to just those 
items or categories.  This question is too broad to provide with a blanket answer.  The 
Lottery’s paramount interest is in carrying out its core mission and the Lottery expects the 
Vendor’s full cooperation with regard to future transitions.  Otherwise everyone involved 
should be mindful of the Vendor’s intellectual property rights.   

Question: Lastly, will the Lottery please confirm that should it be authorized to offer 
internet-based lottery games or subscriptions that the parties will be allowed to re-visit 
Section C1.19, since the impact of this clause cannot be effectively evaluated or negotiated 
at the current time? 

Answer: The first sentence of paragraph three in section C1.19 applies to internet-based 
games. 

 
25. Question: Attachment B: Mandatory Requirements of Contract.  In the 

“Indemnification” section of Attachment B, the ITN states in item (5): “[h]owever, the 
Contractor’s duty or indemnification shall not apply…(emphasis added)”. This Vendor 
believes the use of the term “or” was a typographical error and the Lottery intended to use 
the word “of”. Will the Lottery please confirm this was a typographical error and kindly 
amend the ITN to reflect the correct word “of”?  

Answer: This is a typographical error.  Refer to Attachment B, Revised Page 4 of this 
Addendum that provides a correction.  

Question: Further, the “Indemnification” section includes the following statement: 
“However, the Contractor’s duty [of] indemnification shall not apply to any materials or 
information supplied by Lottery to the Contractor.” Will the Lottery please confirm that 
Vendor’s legal counsel shall control any such defense?  

Answer:  No.  

Question: Lastly, will the Lottery please amend the “Indemnification” section to provide 
that to the extent that any goods or services provided by the Contractor become the subject 
of any claim, suit or proceeding for infringement, the Contractor, after consultation with the 
Lottery, may do one of the following, at the Contractor’s expense: (i) procure for the Lottery 
the right to use or sub-license, as appropriate, the product or service; (ii) replace the product 
or service, or part thereof, with other suitable products or parts conforming to the original 
Lottery specifications; or (iii) suitably modify the products, or part thereof? 

Answer: The Lottery has considered this request and the term and condition remain 
unchanged.  Appropriate remedies will be determined at the time of the incident. 
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26. Question: Attachment B: Mandatory Requirements of Contract.  Publicly listed Vendors (or 
Vendors which are subsidiaries of publicly listed companies) are required to make certain 
public releases, including, without limitation, releases of certain recently executed Contracts. 
In connection with the “News Releases” section of Attachment B, which provides that the 
Lottery is the only entity authorized to issue news releases related to the Contract, will the 
Lottery please confirm that it will not withhold its consent to a news release from the 
Contractor if such public release is required under applicable securities or other similar 
laws, provided that the Lottery has approval rights over the contents of such news releases, 
such approval not to be unreasonably withheld, delayed or denied? 

Answer: Yes, the Lottery confirms this understanding.  
 
27. Question: Attachment B: Mandatory Requirements of Contract.  Pursuant to Item #4 of the 

“Termination for Cause” section set forth in Attachment B, the Lottery may terminate the 
Contract if the “State enacts a law which removes or restricts the authority or ability of the 
Lottery to conduct all or part of a gaming function.”  

We believe that such event should not be included within the Termination for Cause 
section of Attachment B, given that the Vendor would not be the cause of the enactment of 
such law, and Vendor would have no control over the enactment of such law – thus 
equating this event more to a “Termination for Convenience”. Further, Vendors are often 
required to report to other jurisdictions any terminations “for cause,” and this event that is 
not “caused” by the Vendor could be problematic. As such, will the Lottery please remove 
this item #4 from the Termination for Cause provision of Attachment B and reinsert it 
under the Termination for Convenience provision in Attachment B? 

Answer:  No.  The Lottery has considered this request and the term and condition remains 
unchanged.  

28. Attachment B: Mandatory Requirements of Contract.  In connection with to the 
“Termination for Convenience” section of Attachment B, this Vendor notes that the 
Lottery has the right to terminate the Contract at any time, for convenience, on three (3) days 
prior notice. In the event of such termination after an order for materials or services has 
been placed, the contactor shall be entitled to receive compensation (i) upon submission of 
invoices and proper proof of claim, in that proportion which its services and products were 
satisfactorily rendered or provided, as well as (ii) expenses necessarily incurred in the 
performance of work up to time of termination.  

A. Question: Will the Lottery please explain how a Contractor would be compensated 
under each of the above components in the event that the Contractor has made, for 
example, a $100M capital investment in the form of equipment and services and the 
Contract is terminated several months into its term?  

Answer:  No.  Legitimate and unavoidable expenses that were necessarily incurred by 
the Vendor will be considered for compensation.  Capital investments, which the Vendor 
owns or has the right of use, are not expenses, and will not be reimbursed.    
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B. Question: We assume, but please confirm, that the second component above would 
compensate Contractor for the cost of the goods and services employed by Contractor in 
the development, implementation, and deployment of the Lottery infrastructure (i.e., the 
$100 million capital investment referenced above)? 

Answer:  No.  Legitimate and unavoidable expenses that were necessarily incurred by 
the Vendor will be considered for compensation.  Capital investments, which the Vendor 
owns or has the right of use, are not expenses, and will not be reimbursed.  

29. Question: Attachment C: Part 1 - Special Terms and Conditions; C1.3.6.1 Game System 
Installation.  In Section C1.3.6.1 of Attachment C: Part 1 – Special Terms and Conditions, 
the Lottery included the phrase “as stipulated by the Contract” in connection with the 
“production start-up date” used for calculation of the Liquidated Damages assessed for: (A) 
Readiness to Start of Lottery Acceptance Testing, (B) Successful Completion of Lottery 
Acceptance Testing, and (C) Production Operations.   

Will the Lottery please confirm that that “production start-up date” to be “stipulated by the 
Contract” will be a mutually agreeable date arrived at between the Contractor and Lottery 
pursuant to the negotiation process identified in Section 5.7, taking into consideration a 
Vendor’s proposed conversion and implementation plans submitted in response to Sections 
2.4.7 and 2.4.8? 

Answer: Yes, the start-up date will be mutually decided and established according to the 
terms and conditions of the resulting Contract. 

30. Question: Attachment C: Part 1 - Special Terms and Conditions; C1.3.6.9 Failure to 
Modify Existing Terminal Games or to Install Additional Games; and C1.3.6.10 Failure to 
Produce an Administrative Software Change.  Sections C1.3.6.9 and C1.3.6.10 of 
Attachment C include a delivery/modification requirement commencing “within ninety (90) 
days from delivery of a Lottery approved set of [game] [change] specifications” (as 
applicable). Will the Lottery please confirm that “delivery of a Lottery approved set of 
[game] [change] specifications” means the final signed software specifications that have 
been agreed to by the parties? 

Answer: No. The ninety (90) day period begins upon the delivery of the Lottery’s 
approved set of specifications.  

31. Question: Attachment C: Part 1 - Special Terms and Conditions; C1.3.6.15 Failure to 
Report Incidents.  Item D of Section C1.3.6.15(1.) requires the Vendor to report “out of 
balance conditions.” Out of balance conditions could refer to imbalances between CGS 
systems, reporting systems, or between the ICS and CGS. ICS/CGS imbalances are 
typically found and reported by the party running the ICS, which in this case would be the 
Lottery. Will the Lottery please confirm that the Vendor will not be held responsible for 
reporting ICS imbalances? 

Answer: The Vendor will not be held responsible for reporting ICS imbalances.  The 
Contractor will be responsible for providing a letter addressed to the Lottery’s Contract 
Manager in accordance with section 1.3.6.15 Failure to Report Incidents.   
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32. Question: Attachment C: Part 1 - Special Terms and Conditions; C1.9 Insurance.  Section 
C1.9 covers insurance requirements of the Contractor. Due to the individual small value of 
some of the equipment in the field; i.e. at a retailer location, it is conceivable for a 
Contractor to decide to self-insure this exposure. Will the Lottery please allow for self-
insurance for the Property coverage at retailer locations? 

Answer: No. The Lottery has considered this request and the term and condition remains 
unchanged. 

33. Question: Attachment C: Part 1 - Special Terms and Conditions; C1.9 Insurance.  Will the 
Lottery please confirm that a policy with Combined Single Limits for Bodily Injury and 
Property Damage of $2,000,000 will satisfy the Public Liability Insurance requirement under 
Section C1.9? 

Answer: No. The Lottery has considered this request and the term and condition remains 
unchanged.  

34. Question: Attachment C: Part 1 - Special Terms and Conditions; C1.11 Winning Ticket 
Liability.  Section C1.11 of Attachment C provides that the Contractor will pay “all prize 
costs” and “any additional cost incurred by the Lottery” in connection with errors or 
faults by the Contractor’s staff, its subcontractors, or the System which result in financial 
obligations, including, without limitation, errors in entry or posting of winning numbers by 
System operators, software and hardware errors creating Retailer or payout liabilities, and 
apparent winning tickets issued by the System and presented for redemption not identified 
as valid, winning, saleable tickets in the transactions supplied by the Contractor to the ICS. 

This obligation far exceeds what is statutorily required of the Florida Public Education Lottery 
Act. Chapter 24 of the Florida Statutes Annotated (the “Florida Lottery Act”), which 
provides: (i) under Section 24.115(c), that “No prize may be paid arising from 
claimed tickets that are stolen, counterfeit, altered, fraudulent, unissued, produced or 
issued in error, unreadable, not received or not recorded by the department by 
applicable deadlines, lacking in captions that confirm and agree with the lottery play 
symbols as appropriate to the lottery game involved, or not in compliance with such 
additional specific rules and public or confidential validation and security tests of the 
department appropriate to the particular lottery game involved (emphasis added)”, and (ii) 
under Section 24.124, that “[o]ther than the issuance of a replacement ticket, there shall be 
no right or cause of action and no liability on the part of the department, retailer, 
vendor, or any other person associated with selling an online games ticket, with respect 
to errors or inaccuracies contained in the ticket, including errors in the 
number or numbers printed on the ticket(emphasis added).”  

As such, will the Lottery please revise Section C1.11 of Attachment C to comply with Florida 
law – specifically, Sections 24.115 and 24.124 of the Florida Lottery Act? 

Answer: No. The Lottery has considered this request and the term and condition remains 
unchanged. 
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35. Question: Attachment C: Part 1 - Special Terms and Conditions; C1.12 Right of Use.  
Pursuant to Section C1.12 of Attachment C: Part 1 - Special Terms and Conditions, the 
Lottery is given the “right of use” (usufruct) in the Contractor’s source and object program 
upon the happening of certain events. One of the events listed (No. 4) is “[a] breach of the 
Contract by the Lottery.”  

While this Vendor acknowledges and appreciates that should the Contractor be in material 
breach (which is uncured – as included in item no. 1 of Section C1.12), then the Lottery 
should have such right of use, we do not believe such rights should extend to situations 
where the Lottery has breached the Contract. As such, will the Lottery amend Section C1.12 
to remove item no. 4 (“A breach of the Contract by the Lottery”) from the listed reasons 
giving the Lottery the usufruct right of use? 

Answer: No. This question is too broad to provide with a blanket answer and it would 
depend on the specifics and materiality of the alleged breach.  

36. Attachment C: Part 1 - Special Terms and Conditions; C1.18 Management of Software and 
Documentation.  The Lottery requests in Section C1.18 that the Contractor deliver to the 
Lottery or place in a Lottery-approved escrow account “a complete set of Contractor’s 
software source programs, program object code, operations manuals, service manuals, 
written procedures, and any such other materials necessary for the Lottery to operate the 
System” and “installation packages for third party software products.”  

Question: In accordance with industry best-practice, this Vendor’s practice is to deposit 
only its proprietary source code and related materials into escrow for the benefit of 
customers. Bearing in mind that, in most cases, a Contractor does not have the right to 
transfer or place third party software in escrow without the third party owner’s explicit 
approval, will the Lottery please confirm that a Contractor is not required to deposit third 
party materials for which it does not have the right to transfer or place in escrow?  

Answer: The Lottery’s paramount interest is in carrying out its core mission, including 
smooth transitions.  The Lottery expects the Vendor to take all reasonable actions to ensure 
its continued efficient operation with regard to placing information into escrow.  The 
requirement for third party software might be met by placing a current image or snap-shot of 
the System into escrow. 

Question: Additionally, will the Lottery please confirm that the Contractor’s obligation 
under this Section to provide changes and change documentation within a week of 
installation in production is limited to material changes to the proprietary source code and 
that non-material changes to Contractor’s proprietary source code shall be deposited 
annually?  

Answer: The Lottery confirms this understanding.  The Lottery will determine which changes 
are material or non-material. 

Question: Further, will the Lottery please confirm that its rights to access the escrowed 
materials for auditing purposes is limited to reviewing an index of the deposited materials to 
confirm the necessary software code and documentation have been deposited by 
Contractor?  
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Answer: Yes, the Lottery confirms this understanding.  

Question: Last, will the Lottery please confirm that such source materials will be deposited 
with an independent third-party escrow agent and not with the Lottery itself, which is 
consistent with industry practice? 

Answer: The ITN provides the option for these source materials to be deposited with a 
Lottery-approved independent third-party escrow agent. 

37. Question: Attachment C: Part 1 - Special Terms and Conditions; C1.21 Attachment of 
Third Party Systems, Terminals, or Products. Will the Lottery please confirm that the 
requirement to supply interface specifications and support pursuant to Section C1.21 will be 
subject to Contractor’s rights to preserve its trade secrets and other confidential and 
proprietary information?  

Answer:  This question is too broad to provide with a blanket answer.  The Lottery’s 
paramount interest is in carrying out its core mission and the Lottery expects the Vendor’s full 
cooperation with regard to future transitions.  Otherwise everyone involved should be 
mindful of the Vendor’s legitimate intellectual property rights.   

Question: Additionally, will the Lottery please confirm that Contractor will not be required 
to disclose information or permit other third-party vendors to access or use information or 
materials in that would compromise Vendor’s proprietary rights in its terminals, products, 
systems, or services? 

Answer: No.  The Lottery’s paramount interest is in carrying out its core mission and the 
Lottery expects the Vendor’s full cooperation with regard to future transitions.  Otherwise 
everyone involved should be mindful of the Vendor’s intellectual property rights.   

38. Question: Attachment C: Part 2 Performance Requirements and Deliverables; C2.1.6 
Gaming Quantitative Performance Criteria; and C2.2.1.2 Player Self Service Vending.  
Section C2.1.6 of Attachment C: Part 2 provides that at start up, the Lottery expects 39% of 
the current retailer base will have FSVMs. However, Section C2.2.1.2 of Attachment C: Part 
2, provides that “the base contract will include five-thousand (5,000) vending machines that 
are capable of dispensing Scratch-Off game tickets games and terminal game tickets.”   

As there appears to be some discrepancy as to the total number of FSVMs expected at 
startup, will the Lottery please clarify this discrepancy? 

Answer: This is a typographical error.  Refer to Attachment C: Part 2, Revised Page 33 of 
this Addendum that provides a correction.   

39. Question: Attachment C: Part 2 -Performance Requirements and Deliverables; C2.1.6 
Gaming Quantitative Performance Criteria.  Section C2.1.6(3)(N) provides a requirement 
that the System provided in the “base capability” support the Lottery’s growth dynamics, 
which may include monitor games, VLTs, web-enabled access, and “other games and 
innovations” that may be introduced during the life of the Contract. As these potential 
growth dynamics are undefined with respect to scope, implementation timing, applicable 
legal restrictions, etc., and thus a responsible Vendor cannot appropriately cost these 
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potential innovations in its Cost Submittal Form, will the Lottery please confirm that the 
Contractor must ensure that it has the ability to expand the System, but that additional 
remuneration will be paid to the Contractor in connection with the implementation by the 
Contractor of these potential growth dynamics and such solutions and remuneration will be 
subject to negotiation? 

Answer: The Contractor must ensure it has the ability to expand the System.  Whether or 
not the Vendor will be due any additional compensation for such expansion will be 
governed by the terms and conditions of the Contract, including Section 4.6 Cost & 
Compensation.  

40. Question: Attachment C: Part 2 -Performance Requirements and Deliverables; C2.2.1.3 
Retailer Terminal Supplements.  Section C2.2.1.3(4.) provides that the Contractor must be 
prepared to provide and support “smart device”/app capability and that the Contractor 
would both: (i) supply all hardware and software services and (ii) make available/expose 
software services that would also allow third-party developers to create apps for public 
access.  

As these potential offerings are undefined with respect to scope, implementation timing, 
applicable legal restrictions, etc., and thus a responsible Vendor cannot appropriately cost 
these potential deliverables in its Cost Submittal Form, will the Lottery please confirm that all 
such services and deliverables to be provided by the Contractor under Item 4 of Section 
C2.2.1.3 would be subject to additional pricing and/or remuneration to the Contractor to 
be negotiated by the parties?  

Answer: Refer to Section 4.6: Cost & Compensation.  

Question: Further, will the Lottery please confirm that, to the extent that any of the 
Contractor’s intellectual property will need to be available to third-party developers, the 
Contractor will be fully permitted to adequately protect such intellectual property to its 
reasonable satisfaction before being obligated to make such intellectual property available 
to those developers? 

Answer: The Lottery’s paramount interest is in carrying out its core mission and the Lottery 
expects the Vendor’s full cooperation with regard to future transitions.  Otherwise everyone 
involved should be mindful of the Vendor’s intellectual property rights.  Also, refer to section 
C1.21 Attachment of Third Party Systems, Terminals, or Products. 

41. Question: Attachment C: Part 2Performance Requirements and Deliverables; C2.4.7 
Retailer Accounting & Reporting.  Section C2.4.7 states that the workflow management 
system must include an electronic document management capability to support the exchange 
and tracking of forms and other documents used in the Retailer Management and other 
business processes.  

With respect to the scope of the document management system, will the Lottery please 
confirm whether the system would be limited to the ability to attach one or more document(s) 
to workflow steps or would it also include workflow around the lifecycle of the document 
itself?   
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In addition, will the Lottery expect there to be version management on the documents 
associated with the workflow? 

Answer: The workflow management system should include workflow around the lifecycle 
of the document itself where document routing and action steps are noticed, tracked and 
escalated as needed.  Document version control should be included.  

42. Question: Attachment C: Part 2 -Performance Requirements and Deliverables; C2.4.10 
Management and Administrative Reports. Will the Lottery please confirm that the five (5) 
“Predictive Analytics” licenses in the table in Section C2.4.10 of Attachment C are 
specifically intended to be for the SAP application? 

Answer: The five (5) “Predictive Analytics” licenses in the table in Section 2.4.10 of 
Attachment C are specifically intended to be the SAP application. 

43. Question: Attachment C: Part 2 -Performance Requirements and Deliverables; C2.5.3 
Terminal Games.  Item 2. of Section C2.5.3 provides that the Lottery reserves the right to 
add games, game features, and play types at any time during the term of the Contract. The 
Contractor must have the ability to expand traditional games and play type options at no 
additional cost.  

To the extent that new play type options are introduced that are beyond the specifications 
set forth in the ITN, will the Lottery allow for the Contractor to earn additional compensation 
for such additional effort? This issue becomes particularly acute if the request is made near 
the end of the term, giving the Contractor no ability to earn a return on the software 
development effort. 

Answer:  The Lottery has considered this request and the terms and conditions remain 
unchanged.  Refer to section 4.6 Cost & Compensation.  

44. Question: Attachment C: Part 2 -Performance Requirements and Deliverables; C2.7.8 
Physical Asset Management (PAM).  In connection with the requirements under Section 
C2.7.8, will the Lottery please clarify whether when the Lottery requests that the PAM system 
be used to manage its physical inventory, including, but not limited to, Lottery IT assets, 
retailer point of sale fixtures, and promotional items, and that the scope of this requirement 
is limited to these items within the retail environment? 

Answer: The PAM system must also be available for the Lottery’s use to manage its 
physical inventory, including but not limited to, Lottery IT assets, retailer point of sale fixtures, 
and promotional items.  The scope of this requirement is not limited to items within the retail 
environment.  
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Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or are 
engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria. Both lists are created 
pursuant to § 215.473, Fla. Stat.  

 
No company on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List or the 
Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector 
List, or are engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria may submit a 
Reply for or enter into a contract with an agency for goods or services of 
$1,000,000 or more. In submitting a response to this ITN, the Vendor certifies 
that it is not listed on either the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in 
Sudan List or the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum 
Energy Sector List and is not engaged in business operations in Cuba or 
Syria. Contractor understands that pursuant to §287.135, Fla. Stat., the 
submission of a false certification may subject the contract to termination. 

 
Vendor represents and warrants that it will promptly notify the Lottery if it is 
placed on the convicted vendor list, the discriminatory vendor list or the 
scrutinized companies list during this procurement process or contract term. 

 
1.17 WITHDRAWAL FROM CONSIDERATION  
 

The withdrawal of a Reply from consideration may be requested in writing within 
five (5) business days (excluding State holidays, Saturdays, and Sundays) after 
the established submission date and time. Requests received in accordance with 
this provision may be granted by the Lottery upon proof of impossibility to 
perform, or based upon an obvious error. Replies withdrawn from consideration 
will be retained by the Lottery.  Any request for withdrawal submitted after five (5) 
business days will be subject to the Reply bond provisions of Section 3.3.1. 

 
1.18 CLARIFICATION PROCESS  
 

Following completion of the administrative qualification review & cure process 
(see Section 1.13), the Lottery may request clarifications from Vendors for the 
purpose of resolving ambiguities or questioning information presented in the 
Replies. Clarifications may occur throughout the evaluation and negotiation 
processes. Clarification responses shall be in writing and shall address only the 
information requested. Responses shall be submitted to the Lottery within the 
time stipulated at the occasion of the request. 

 
1.19 DISCLOSURE AND OWNERSHIP OF REPLY CONTENTS BY THE LOTTERY  
 

All matters set forth in a Vendor's Reply including, without limitation, technical 
information; will be subject to disclosure after Contract award, except as 
addressed under Section 1.21 1.20, Confidential Reply Materials. All information 
in a Vendor's Reply and any contract resulting from this ITN are subject to the 
provisions of Florida’s Public Records Act, Chapter 119, Fla. Stat., regardless of 
copyright status. 
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Additional Background Investigations 

The Lottery may initiate investigations into the backgrounds of any officers, 
principals, investors, owners, subcontractors, employees or any other associates 
of the Contractor it deems appropriate. Such background investigations may 
include fingerprint identification. 
 
Key personnel who will be performing services under the Contract and as 
designated by the Lottery will be required to undergo a background investigation 
by the Lottery within thirty (30) days of execution of a Contract.  Each designated 
individual will be fingerprinted and will be required to complete the Supplemental 
Application and a Personal Inquiry Waiver Affidavit. 
 
The Contractor consents to cooperate with such investigations and to instruct its 
employees, Substantial Subcontractors or Subcontractor to cooperate. The 
Lottery may terminate the Contract based upon any adverse results of these 
background checks if the Lottery determines that its integrity, security, or goodwill 
may be in jeopardy. 
 
The ability to conduct background investigations is a continuing right of the 
Lottery throughout the Contract. 
 

3.9  3.7
 
 RESPECT OF FLORIDA – CONTRACTUAL RELATIONSHIP 

The Florida Lottery is committed to maximizing employment opportunities for 
individuals throughout this state who qualify as handicapped under Sections 
413.031 and 413.036, Florida Statutes.  
 
By submitting a response to this ITN, each Vendor is committing to adhere to the 
aforementioned statute sections. To further the Lottery’s commitment in this 
regard and to ensure that RESPECT is afforded the opportunity to provide 
commodities and/or services necessary for a Vendor to perform its contractual 
obligations, a RESPECT of Florida Certification of Consultation must be 
executed by RESPECT and any Vendor submitting a Reply, and should be 
submitted with the Vendor’s Reply.  
 
RESPECT has been provided a copy of this solicitation and is prepared to 
consult with Vendors on the date of solicitation release. Due to the time 
sensitivity of a sealed Reply process, Vendors are encouraged to contact the 
RESPECT representative identified below in sufficient time to facilitate a timely 
submission to the Lottery.  

 
 

http://www.flalottery.com/exptkt/supplementalApplication.pdf�
http://www.flalottery.com/exptkt/supplementalApplication.pdf�
http://www.flalottery.com/exptkt/personalInquiryWaiverAffidavit.pdf�
http://www.flalottery.com/exptkt/certificationOfConsultation.pdf�


Florida Lottery Invitation to Negotiate 066-14/15  Page 31 
Lottery Gaming System and Related Commodities & Services                    Revised 02/26/15, Addendum 1  
   

RESPECT of Florida may be contacted at: 
 

RESPECT  
2475 Apalachee Pkwy 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301-4946 
 
Phone/main:  (850) 877-4816  
Phone/direct:  (850)942-3570  
Fax:   (850) 942-7832 
 
Contact:  Margaret McPherson  

mmcpherson@respectofflorida.org   
 
RESPECT of Florida contract terms are listed in Attachment E. 
 

3.10  3.8
 

 PREFERENCE TO FLORIDA BUSINESSES 

This solicitation is subject to the provisions of § 287.084, Fla. Stat., whereby 
Florida businesses will receive preference in the award of a contract.  
 
In the letting of any or all public contracts, a Vendor whose principal place of 
business is outside the State of Florida must accompany its submission to this 
solicitation with a written opinion signed by an attorney at law licensed to practice 
law in that foreign state, as to the preferences, if any or none, granted by the law 
of that state to business entities domiciled within its state boundaries. The written 
opinion must state with specificity the type of preference, how it is applied and 
circumstances when it is applicable. 
 
For the purpose of this solicitation, “principal place of business” means the state 
in which the Vendor has a physical presence and from which the Vendor’s high 
level officers direct, control, and coordinate the Vendor’s activities.  
 

END OF SECTION 

mailto:mmcpherson@respectofflorida.org�
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4.4 FORMATTING  
 
The objective of the Reply is to demonstrate the Vendor’s qualifications and 
ability to provide the commodities and services required. By submission of a 
Reply, the Vendor is certifying that it is capable of providing a System that meets 
or exceeds the performance requirements set forth in Attachment C, section titled 
“Performance Requirements and Deliverables”, and that the company is capable 
of providing the deliverables and managing the contract in a manner that is 
conducive and beneficial to the Florida Lottery’s operations and mission. 
 
In order to expedite review of responses, Vendors should follow the below format 
and instructions: 

 
1. Replies should be submitted in 8.5” by 11” format. 

2. Replies should be in 3 ring binders and each should be identified, as 
applicable, “original” or “copy” (copies should be numbered sequentially). 
Removable items such as CD’s should be marked and contain the 
corresponding number of the binder they are submitted in e.g. original, copy 
1/10 etc. Removable items should also be secured within their respective 
binder. 

3.  Reply binders should be clearly labeled on the front cover and spine. 

4. All pages should be consecutively numbered. 

5. All major sections should have a divider page with a tab. The name of the 
section should be printed on the tab.  

6. The ITN Part 2 response should include a separate binder where Tabs 2-14 
2-15

• Table of Contents 

 represent specific item-by-item responses to the scope of the ITN as set 
forth in Part 2:  

• Tab 1 Transmittal Letter 
• Tab 2 System Overview 
• Tab 3 Corporate Background Review 
• Tab 4 Gaming Systems Experience 
• Tab 5 Capability to Provide Terminals 
• Tab 6 Software Development and Support Capabilities 
• Tab 7 Research and Development Program 
• Tab 8 Vendor Personnel 
• Tab 9 Conversion Strategy 
• Tab 10 Formal Implementation Plan 
• Tab 11  Interim Facilities and Processes 
• Tab 12 Technology Refresh 
• Tab 13 Reply Enhancements 
• Tab 14 Additional Offerings 
• Tab 15 Relocation Strategy 
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PART 5 - EVALUATION PROCESS AND  
NOTICE OF AGENCY DECISION 

 
5.1 INTRODUCTION  
 

This part describes the evaluation process that will be used to determine which Replies 
provide the greatest overall benefits to the Lottery and the best value to the State. The 
ability of the Lottery to evaluate a Vendor’s response is dependent upon the 
completeness and clarity of content.   
 
The failure of a Vendor to provide information requested by this ITN may result in 
rejection of the Vendor’s Reply or reduction in scoring during the evaluation. The Lottery 
reserves the right to reject, in its sole discretion, any or all Replies at any time during the 
procurement process.  

 
5.2 ADMINISTRATIVE QUALIFICATION REVIEW & CURE PROCESS 

 
The Lottery will review Replies to determine responsiveness and responsibility. The 
responsiveness review will assess compliance with submission requirements, including 
responsiveness to terms, conditions and requirements. The responsibility review will 
assess financial information, conflict of interest information, background review and 
investigations. Cures related to qualification issues may be requested in accordance with 
Section 1.14 1.13.

 

   Responsive Replies submitted by preliminarily determined 
responsible vendors will be provided to an Evaluation Team for evaluation using the 
process described herein. 

5.3 EVALUATION TEAM  
 

The Lottery will conduct a comprehensive, fair, and impartial evaluation of ITN Part 2 
responses received by qualified vendors. At the Lottery’s’ sole determination, the Lottery 
will appoint an Evaluation Team of at least three persons to evaluate replies that have 
collective experience and knowledge in the program areas and service requirements 
requested in this ITN.   

 
5.4 EVALUATION PROCESS  
 

This section describes the review and evaluation process of ITN Part 2 responses.  The 
Lottery will evaluate responsive Replies after the administrative qualification review & 
cure process is completed.  
 
5.4.1 Award Scale for Evaluation 

 
A scoring system will be used in the evaluation process. This system will provide 
numerical scores that represent the Team's assessment of the relative merits of 
the Replies. The scores will be used to establish the competitive range of Vendor 
Replies determined to be reasonably susceptible of award and from which to 
begin negotiations.  Scoring will not carry forward to the negotiation phase.   
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Any such delay in or failure of performance shall not in and of itself give rise to any liability for damages; 
however, the Lottery may elect to terminate the Contract should its continuing operations, in its sole judgment, be 
materially threatened or harmed by reason of extended delay or failure of performance. 

During a period of non-performance due to Force Majeure, payments from the Lottery to the Contractor will be 
suspended. 

UIndemnification U - Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold the Lottery harmless from and against any 
loss resulting from any claim made or brought against it arising out of: 

(1) Contractor’s failure to obtain a required consent of any nature whatsoever; 

(2) Contractor’s contracts with third parties; 

(3) Contractor’s unauthorized use of name or likeness of any person, libel, slander, defamation, 
disparagement, piracy, plagiarism, unfair competition, idea misappropriation, infringement of copyright 
title, slogan or other property rights and any invasion of the right of privacy; 

(4) Breach of Contractor’s obligations under the Contract; or 

(5) Contractor’s negligence or willful misconduct;  

However, the Contractor’s duty SorS UofU indemnification shall not apply to any materials or information supplied by 
Lottery to the Contractor. 

This paragraph, insofar as it applies to work undertaken while the Agreement is in effect, shall survive the 
termination of the Agreement. 

UIndependent Contractor U - The Contractor, its employees, agents and subcontractors performing under the 
Contract are not officers, employees, or agents of the Lottery.  The Contractor is an independent contractor and 
will not hold itself out as nor claim to have any other relationship with the Lottery or the State of Florida by 
reason hereof.  

UInvoicing and Payment 

1. Invoices shall be submitted on a periodic schedule, but no more frequently than weekly. Invoices for 
commodities and/or services delivered shall be submitted in detail sufficient for a proper pre-audit and post 
audit thereof.  Invoices shall be submitted to: 

 Financial Transactions 
        Florida Lottery 
         250 Marriott Drive 
        Tallahassee, FL  32399-4020 
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C2.2.1.2  Player Self Service Vending 

1. Full Service Ticket Vending Machines. As reflected in Section C2.1.6 of Attachment 
C: Part 2 at start up, the Lottery expects 39% of current retailer base to have 
The base contract will include five-thousand (5,000)

2. Vending Machine External Functions. Vending machines must be capable of providing several 
services to customers and store personnel to include, but not be limited to:  

 vending machines that are capable of 
dispensing Scratch-Off game tickets games and terminal game tickets. Additional vending 
machines are to be added based on player and market demand. The Contractor will assume 
all maintenance and support responsibility for the vending machines, but not to include: filling 
and emptying Scratch-Off games as needed, replacing roll stock, taking shift/daily/weekly 
reports, and emptying the cash box. 

A. Dispense to customers Scratch-Off game tickets that are loaded and available for sale; 
B. Dispense terminal game tickets to customers based on quick picks and playslips; 
C. Dispense coupons, vouchers or other items as would be available on a Retailer’s terminal; 
D. Provide capability to allow customers to check tickets for winners, including both Scratch-

Off and terminal game tickets, using bar codes;  
E. The customer display will allow for limited inquiry of prizes remaining and recent winning 

numbers of various games; 
F. Show the customer the balance remaining after cash entry and selection of certain game 

tickets; 
G. Allow reporting of status and recent transactions for store personnel;  
H. Allow store personnel to conveniently refill Scratch-Off game tickets (with multiple books 

per bin, connected by Contractor supplied tape) and printer stock, and to empty the cash 
box;  

I. Provide for promotional and alert messaging; 
J. Provide the capability for age verification; 
K. Be designed in such a way to minimize footprint; 
L. Be designed in such a way to be stable in a free standing form OR have a capability to 

be stabilized by external attachment; 
M. Be securable from physical intrusion, tampering, or theft; 
N. Be able to operate in environments that may be exposed to weather; 
O. Be equipped with a remote on/off mechanism that will operate from a minimum of fifty 

(50) feet in a typical business environment. This remote can be activated by the store 
personnel or from the central system and there must be a visible indicator when the 
vending machine has been deactivated;  

P. Provide for configurable dollar limitation per purchase;  
Q. Be capable of producing audio when certain transactions or functions are performed, or 

specified events occur. The use of sounds must not delay or add time to the transaction 
processing time. The Lottery will define to the Contractor which functions shall trigger this 
feature. Be capable of rendering audio messages including speech and music to support 
all functionality including training, advertising, and messaging. This shall be software 
controlled by function type; 

R. Capability to support player loyalty programs; and 
S. Capability to support play-on-account. 
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The Vendor must submit pricing as a percentage of net terminal sales given in the format X.dddd 
where “X” represents the whole number value and “d” represents decimal digits. Note that only 
net terminal sales will be counted relative to this fee.  Scratch-Off ticket sales are not included 
relative to this fee. 

Example: 2.0000 percent--which would be $20,000 compensation per one million 
dollars of net terminal sales. 

Base System Pricing - Vendors are required to offer the following items as a percentage of net 
terminal sales, carried to four (4) decimal places. 

Price Quoted as a Percentage of Net Terminal Sales ______________________% 
Ten-Year Base Period 

Price Quoted as a Percentage of Net Terminal Sales ______________________% 
First Three-Year Renewal 

Price Quoted as a Percentage of Net Terminal Sales ______________________% 
Second Three-Year Renewal 

Price Quoted as a Percentage of Net Terminal Sales ______________________% 
Third Three-Year Renewal 

Pursuant to section 2.5 of the ITN, Vendors should list any applicable costs associated with each 
Reply Enhancement or Additional Offering proposed as an appendix to the Cost Reply Form Cost 

 
Submittal Form. 

 
Vendor’s / Company Name     Date 

 
F.E.I.D. Number 

 
Signature of Authorized Representative 

 
Printed or Typed Name of Authorized Representative 

 
Address 

 
City and State 

 
Telephone Number  FAX Number 

 
E-mail Address 



Attachment G: Lottery Warehouse Locations 
 

Florida Lottery Invitation to Negotiate 066-14/15  Page 1 of 1 
Lottery Gaming System and Related Commodities & Services                   Added 02/26/15, Addendum 1 

FLORIDA LOTTERY HEADQUARTERS
(The Tallahassee District Office is in the HQ Building) 

  

250 Marriott Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
Phone: (850) 487-7799  
 
PENSACOLA DISTRICT OFFICE  
6601 N. Davis Hwy. Suite 55 
Pensacola, Florida 32504 
Phone: (850) 484-5020 
 
JACKSONVILLE DISTRICT OFFICE  
8206 Phillips Hwy. Suite 36 
Jacksonville, Florida 32256 
Phone: (904) 448-4760 
 
GAINESVILLE DISTRICT OFFICE  
3926 Southwest Archer Road 
Gainesville, Florida 32608 
Phone: (352) 334-3380 
 
ORLANDO DISTRICT OFFICE  
380 South State Street 
Altamonte Springs, Florida 32714 
Phone (407) 788-2202  
 
TAMPA DISTRICT OFFICE  
Centerpoint Business Park 
1911 U.S. Hwy 301 North Suite 170 
Tampa, Florida 33619 
Phone: (813) 744-6134  
 
FORT MYERS DISTRICT OFFICE  
11760 Metro Parkway  
Fort Myers, Florida 33966  
Phone (239) 278-7111  
 
WEST PALM BEACH DISTRICT OFFICE  
6965 Vista Parkway Unit 1  
West Palm Beach, Florida 33411  
Phone (561) 640-6190  
 
MIAMI DISTRICT OFFICE  
14621 Oaks Lane  
Miami, Florida 33126  
Phone (305) 364-3080 
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